

**F. Appendix**

**4. Model Chapter Constitution**

**International Society of Explosives Engineers Model Chapter Constitution**

**Constitution Article 1 - Name and Geographic Boundaries**

Constitution, Article 1, Section 1. The name of this organization is the \_\_\_\_\_

\_\_\_\_\_ Chapter of the Society of Explosives Engineers.

Constitution, Article 1, Section 2. Explosives engineering is defined as that area of engineering practice where judgment and experience are utilized in the application of scientific principles and techniques as they pertain to the use, handling, manufacture, transportation and storage of explosives.

Constitution, Article 1, Section 3. The geographic boundaries served by this Chapter shall

be \_\_\_\_\_

**Constitution, Article 2 - Mission and Goals**

Constitution, Article 2, Section 1. Mission: To advance the science and art of explosives engineering.

Constitution, Article 2, Section 2. Goals:

Section 2 (a) To maintain a strong organization structure that address the needs of all members.

Section 2 (b) To serve society as a body of specialists and encourage service to the community where the skills of those who work with explosives can best be applied.

Section 2 (c) To establish and strengthen working relationships with related national and international associations, government agencies, academic institutions, and allied societies having common or related objectives.

Section 2 (d) To provide forums and media through which principles and techniques of explosives engineering may be reported, discussed, and published.

Section 2 (e) To educate policy makers about our industry and identify, monitor, report and respond to public policy issues affecting the explosives industry.

Section 2 (f) To promote a favorable public perception of explosives engineers and the contributions that they make to society.

Section 2 (g) To promote career development and encourage explosives engineering instruction in appropriate education curricula.

Section 2 (h) To promote the professional development, competence, and qualifications of explosives engineers, practitioners, and those entering the field.

Section 2 (i) To promote standardization of terminology, methods, and regulations in explosives engineering.

Section 2 (j) To establish and maintain a repository of information on the art and science of explosives engineering and encourage its use.

**Constitution, Article 3 - Membership**

Constitution, Article 3, Section 1. The membership shall consist of Members, Associate Members, Corporate Members, and Student Members.

Constitution, Article 3, Section 2. Admission to membership shall be upon approval of application duly made, and in accordance with the procedures established by the Chapter Board of Directors and embodied in the Chapter Constitution.

Constitution, Article 3, Section 3. A Member shall be any individual who is presently engaged in or has been engaged in explosives engineering as defined in Article 1, Section 2 and who has had direct operational responsibility for the use and handling of explosives. A Member in good standing has the privilege of holding elective office, voting for officers and directors and voting on changes to the Constitution.

Constitution, Article 3, Section 4. An Associate Member shall be an individual who is interested in explosives engineering, but who is not otherwise qualified to be a Member. An Associate Member has all the privileges and prerogatives of a Member except that he cannot serve as an Officer of the Society or vote on changes to the Constitution.

Constitution, Article 3, Section 5. Corporate Membership is granted to organizations rather than to individuals. Corporate Members as individuals have all the privileges of Associate Members unless, as individuals, they are qualified and have been approved as if they were applying as Members, in which case they shall have all the privileges of Members.

Constitution, Article 3, Section 6. A Student Member shall be a science or engineering student regularly enrolled in a college or university. A Student Member shall enjoy all the privileges of membership except that a student member cannot hold elective office, vote on officers or directors, or vote on changes to the Constitution.

Constitution, Article 3, Section 7. Membership is not transferable or assignable.

**Model Chapter Constitution** *(continued)*

Constitution, Article 3, Section 8. All applicants for membership must be a member of the International Society of Explosives Engineers. Applications for membership, in order to be approved, shall include the applicant's Society membership number and be accompanied by a summary of the applicant's employment experience and educational background along with the first year's annual dues. In the event of a dispute, decisions regarding membership qualifications may be appealed to the Chapter Board of Directors.

Constitution, Article 3, Section 9. Members who fail to pay their dues within sixty (60) days after statements are mailed shall be transferred to inactive status and lose all rights and privileges of membership.

Constitution, Article 3, Section 10. Members who fail to pay their dues within one year after statements are mailed shall be transferred to non-member status and must reapply for membership.

Constitution, Article 3, Section 11. An Associate Member who wishes to apply for the grade of Member must submit an application as provided for in Section 1, but if his current dues are paid; the application need not be accompanied by remittance of dues.

Constitution, Article 3, Section 12. A Student Member may retain that status until the end of the calendar year in which he ceases to be a regularly enrolled full-time student. However, if he receives a degree in science or engineering he may, at his request, be transferred to Full or Associate Membership, according to his qualifications, without the payment of additional dues for the year. If request for transfer is not made by the end of the calendar year in which the degree is granted, application must be made as provided for in Section 1.

Constitution, Article 3, Section 13. Pursuant to the Constitution of the Society, no individual will be allowed to be member of the Chapter without at the same time being a member of the Society.

Constitution, Article 3, Section 14. Membership in the Chapter carries a definite obligation to pay dues, assessments and fees established by the Chapter Board for specified purposes. Membership is renewable without notice, and a member who does not give notice of withdrawal from the Chapter in writing before the start of the fiscal year, shall be liable for all dues, assessments and fees for the ensuing fiscal year.

**Constitution, Article 4 - Officers and Directors**

Constitution, Article 4, Section 1. The Officers of the Chapter shall be the President, Vice-President, Secretary, Treasurer, and Past President. The officers shall constitute the Executive Committee.

Constitution, Article 4, Section 2. The governing body of the Chapter shall be the Chapter Board of Directors; hereinafter called the Chapter Board, in which the government and management of the Chapter is vested, except as otherwise provided for in the Constitution.

Constitution, Article 4, Section 3. The Board shall consist of the Executive Committee nine (9) Directors elected at large from the Chapter membership and one Director appointed by the President.

Constitution, Article 4, Section 4. A person shall not hold concurrently more than one elected Chapter office.

Constitution, Article 4, Section 5. The Executive Committee shall have overall responsibility for the coordination, planning, and administration of all Chapter activities and for such other specific duties as may from time to time be assigned to it by the Chapter Board.

Constitution, Article 4, Section 6. A quorum of the Chapter Board shall consist of eight (8) members.

Constitution, Article 4, Section 8. The term of office shall be nominally one year for the President, Vice-President, Secretary and Treasurer; nominally two years for Directors at Large and on year for appointed Directors. The exact duration of these terms of office shall be determined by the interval between successive Annual Meetings.

Constitution, Article 4, Section 9. All Officers and Directors shall take office at the end of the Annual Meeting following their election.

Constitution, Article 4, Section 10. Four (4) Directors-at-Large shall be elected to terms which Chapter commence in even number years; and five (5) Directors shall be elected to terms which commence in odd numbered years.

Constitution, Article 4, Section 11. If the office of the President becomes vacant, the Vice-President shall become acting President to fill out the unexpired portion of the term of the President.

Constitution, Article 4, Section 12. Vacancies occurring in the offices of Vice-President, Secretary, Treasurer, or among the Directors-at Large, shall be filled by vote of the Chapter Board for the unexpired portion of the term.

Constitution, Article 4, Section 13. The President, Vice-President, Secretary, Treasurer and Directors-at-Large, shall not be eligible to serve more than three (3) successive terms.

Constitution, Article 4, Section 14. Nominations of Officers and Directors-at-Large shall be made by a Nominating Committee appointed by the President and approved by the Chapter Board.

Constitution, Article 4, Section 15. Election of Officers shall be by closed ballot as prescribed in the Constitution.

Constitution, Article 4, Section 16. No more than one individual from any corporation or business entity shall be nominated as a candidate for elected officer or director of the Chapter at any time.

**Model Chapter Constitution** *(continued)*

**Constitution, Article 5 - Duties of Officers and Directors**

Constitution, Article 5, Section 1. The President shall preside at all business meetings of the Chapter, and exercise general supervision over the affairs of the Chapter according to the policies and regulations established by the Chapter Board.

Constitution, Article 5, Section 2. The Vice-President shall have overall responsibility for the administrative affairs of the Chapter and act in the absence of the President.

Constitution, Article 5, Section 3. The Secretary shall have overall responsibility for keeping minutes of the meetings of the Chapter and proceedings of the Chapter Board, and keeping all official correspondence of the Chapter.

Constitution, Article 5, Section 4. The Treasurer shall have overall responsibility for the dues and funds of the Chapter and shall disburse the same upon the authority of the Chapter Board. He shall report annually to the Society and to the Chapter Board. The bank accounts shall be administered by the President and the Treasurer. Both signatures shall be authority for withdrawal of funds. Vouchers must accompany all transactions.

Constitution, Article 5, Section 5. The Chapter Board shall meet at least once a year on the call of the President or any eight (8) members of the Chapter Board. The Chapter Board shall have the power to make such regulations, not inconsistent with the Constitution, as shall be necessary for the protection of the property, and for the preservation of good order in the conduct of the affairs.

Constitution, Article 5 and 6. Any Chapter Board Member unable to attend a meeting shall so notify the President, in writing, prior to the meeting. Any Chapter Board member failing to attend two (2) consecutive meetings, without sufficient cause, shall be deemed inactive as a Member of the Chapter Board of Directors, and his office shall be filled by vote of the Chapter Board for the unexpired portion of the term.

**Constitution, Article 6 - Nomination of Officers and Directors**

Constitution, Article 6, Section 1. At each Annual Meeting the President shall appoint a Nominating Committee consisting of five (5) or more members in good standing.

Constitution, Article 6, Section 2. The Nominating Committee shall nominate candidates for election as officers and directors and obtain the consent of each nominee to serve if elected. The proposed slate of candidates shall be published in the official newsletter of the Chapter prior to mailing of the official ballots.

Constitution, Article 6, Section 3. Other nominations may be made by petition signed by at least twenty five (15) members. The petitioners shall be responsible for obtaining in writing the agreement of the nominee to serve if elected and submitting the petition and the agreement to the Chapter President no later than two (2) months prior to the next Annual Meeting.

Constitution, Article 6, Section 4. The official election ballot shall be mailed prior to the Annual Meeting. Ballots shall be marked by the members and returned prior to the Annual Meeting. Ballots received after the specified time shall not be counted.

Constitution, Article 6, Section 5. Those candidates receiving the greatest number of votes cast shall be elected. In case of a tie vote, the office shall be filled by vote of the Chapter Board from among those tied for office. The results shall be announced at the Annual Meeting and published in the Chapter newsletter.

**Constitution, Article 7 - Committees**

Constitution, Article 7, Section 1. Committees may be established by the Chapter Board or by the President with the consent of the Chapter Board at any time with specified authority and responsibilities. The President shall be an ex-officio member of all committees.

Constitution, Article 7, Section 2. Actions taken by Committees shall be subject to Article 11 (Declaration of Policy) of this Constitution relating to limitations of responsibility and authority and restricting commitments on behalf of the Society and the Chapter and in matters of policy.

Constitution, Article 7, Section 3. The Standing Committees of the Chapter shall include: (a) Constitution; (b) Executive; (c) Nominating; (d) Membership; (e) Newsletter; (f) Program; and (g) Governmental.

Constitution, Article 7, Section 4. It shall be the function of the Constitution Committee to advise the Board about proposed changes to the Constitution.

Constitution, Article 7, Section 5. It shall be the function of the Membership Committee to promote membership in the Chapter and the Society.

Constitution, Article 8, Section 6. It shall be the function of the Newsletter Committee to publish and distribute the Chapter Newsletter.

Constitution, Article 7, Section 7. It shall be the function of the Program Committee to plan and organize the program for Chapter meetings.

**Model Chapter Constitution** *(continued)*

Constitution, Article 7, Section 8. It shall be the function of the Governmental Committee to review proposed legislation and regulations which apply exclusively within the geographic area represented by the Chapter and make recommendations to the Chapter Board of Directors regarding positions to be taken.

Constitution, Article 7, Section 9. The Chairman of each Committee shall appoint the other members of his committee, subject to the approval of the Chapter Board.

Constitution, Article 7, Section 10. Members of Committees shall be appointed to terms of office, nominally one (1) year, running concurrently with the terms of the President of the Society. Members of Committees shall be eligible to serve any number of successive terms to which they are appointed.

Constitution, Article 7, Section 11. Committees shall devise their own rules of procedure and adopt the same with approval of the Chapter Board.

Constitution, Article 7, Section 12. Each Committee Chairman shall file a written report of activities and recommendations to the President, at least thirty (30) days prior to the Annual Meeting.

**Constitution, Article 8 - Meetings**

Constitution, Article 8, Section 1. There shall be an Annual Meeting of the Chapter held at such time and place, as the Chapter Board shall determine.

Constitution, Article 8, Section 2. Other meetings of the Chapter shall be called by the President upon approval of the Chapter Board, or may be called by a majority of the Chapter Board.

Constitution, Article 8, Section 3. Notices of the time and place of each meeting, and general information shall be sent to all members. Such notices, except in case of urgency shall be mailed not less than thirty (30) days before the meeting.

Constitution, Article 8, Section 4. At any meeting any procedural question requiring parliamentary ruling not provided for in the Constitution shall be decided in accordance with Roberts Rules of Order, Revised.

Constitution, Article 8, Section 5. At each Annual Meeting, the President shall present a report of the state of the Chapter to the membership. The President may call upon other officers, directors, and committee chairmen to present additional reports at this time. Questions, resolutions, announcements and discussions by the membership from the floor will be entertained at this meeting.

**Constitution, Article 9 - Charter Responsibilities**

Constitution, Article 9, Section 1. Actions taken by this Chapter shall be subject to Article 11 (Declaration of Policy) of this Constitution relating to limitations of responsibility and authority and restricting commitments on behalf of the Society and in matters of policy.

Constitution, Article 9, Section 2. At its discretion, the Board of Directors of the Society may redefine the geographic boundaries of this Chapter.

Constitution, Article 9, Section 3. This Chapter shall be governed by its own officers and directors, subject to its own Constitution and the Constitution of the Society. Adoption of changes in the Constitution of Chapters shall be approved in advance by the Board of Directors of the Society.

Constitution, Article 9, Section 4. The minutes of each Chapter meeting shall be regularly transmitted to the Executive Director of the Society.

Constitution, Article 9, Section 5. The Chapter shall make an annual report and such other reports as required, in the form and at the time prescribed by the Executive Director of the Society. The annual report shall contain the financial position, membership by name and current address, and a summary of activities for the previous year and a calendar of events scheduled for the succeeding year.

Constitution, Article 9, Section 6. The Charter of this Chapter may be withdrawn by the Board of Directors of the ISEE if, in its opinion, the chapter is not serving the best interests of the Society or if the Chapter is not in substantial compliance with the Constitution of the Society.

**Constitution, Article 10 - Financial**

Constitution, Article 10, Section 1. The schedule of dues, assessments and fees for members of various grades shall be fixed by a two-thirds vote of the entire Chapter Board. Changes in the dues schedule shall become effective at the beginning of the ensuing fiscal year.

Constitution, Article 10, Section 2. In the event that the Chapter should be dissolved for any reason, its assets - physical and monetary should be disposed of as follows: 1. All just debts and claims shall be paid from cash on hand; said assets shall be sold if said cash is insufficient to pay all debts and claims. 2. Any remaining assets, for which there are not just claims or debts, shall be turned over, without any restrictions whatsoever, to the Society of Explosives Engineers Educational Foundation, Inc.

**Model Chapter Constitution** *(continued)*

Constitution, Article 10, Section 3. The books and financial records of the Chapter shall be open to review at any time by any member of the Chapter and by the Executive Director of the Society.

**Constitution, Article 11 - Declarations of Policy**

Constitution, Article 11, Section 1. Responsibility and authority for any declarations of Society policy, and/or endorsement, and/or rejection of any matter on any subject of policy, is reserved to the judgment and discretion of the Society Board of Directors. Committees, other than the Executive Committee, chapters, officers, corporate or individual members, employees or agents of the Society are not authorized directly or indirectly to commit the Society in any way or any manner financially or otherwise, without prior approval of the Board of Directors of the Society of Explosives Engineers.

Constitution, Article 11, Section 2. Responsibility and authority for any declarations of Chapter policy, and/or endorsement, and/or rejection of any matter on any subject of policy, is reserved to the judgment and discretion of the Chapter Board of Directors. Committees, other than the Executive Committee, officers, corporate or individual members, employees or agents of the Chapter are not authorized directly or indirectly to commit the Chapter in any way or any manner financially or otherwise, without prior approval of the Chapter Board of Directors.

**Constitution, Article 12 - Penalties and Expulsion**

Constitution, Article 12, Section 1. If any member of the Chapter shall be suspended or expelled from the Society pursuant to the Society's Constitution, such member shall be deemed to be suspended or expelled from the Chapter.

**Constitution, Article 13 - Duration**

Constitution, Article 13, Section 1. The Chapter shall exist so long as it continues to be Chartered by the Society, except that it may be dissolved in the manner provided by law and pursuant to Article 12, Section 3 of this Constitution.

**Constitution, Article 14 - Amendments**

Constitution, Article 14, Section 1. The Constitution may be amended, repealed or added to only in the following manner: Recommendations for amending, repealing, or adding provisions to the Constitution may be presented for consideration to the Constitution Committee.

Constitution, Article 14, Section 2. The Constitution Committee shall consider all proposals submitted and present recommendations to the Chapter Board.

Constitution, Article 14, Section 3. A proposal to amend the Constitution, having been approved in advance by the Board of Directors of the Society and by the Chapter Board shall be placed on a ballot and mailed to all members eligible to vote on changes to the Constitution.

Constitution, Article 14, Section 4. Ballots shall be marked by the members and returned prior to the next scheduled meeting of the Chapter Board. Ballots received after the specified time shall not be counted.

Constitution, Article 14, Section 5. The Secretary shall count the ballots and report the results to the Board prior to the next Board meeting and to the membership at the next Chapter Meeting. The results also shall be published in the Chapter newsletter.

Constitution, Article 14, Section 6. Amendments to the Constitution shall become effective at the close of the Chapter Board meeting following their adoption.

Constitution, Article 14, Section 7. An affirmative vote of two-thirds of the valid votes cast shall be required for adoption of an amendment.

**Constitution, Article 15 - Official Newsletter**

Constitution, Article 15, Section 1. The Chapter shall publish an official newsletter, which shall be mailed to all members. All official and legal notices required to be issued by the Chapter Board of Directors to the membership shall be considered as so issued when published in the official newsletter.

**Constitution, Article 16 - Emblem and Seal**

Constitution, Article 16, Section 1. The official emblem and seal of the Chapter shall be determined by the Chapter Board of Directors.

*Revised January 2002*

**F. Appendix**

**5. International Society of Explosives Engineers**

- ▶ **Standards of Ethical Conduct**
- ▶ **Fundamental Principles**
- ▶ **Fundamental Canons**

**Constitution, Article 15 - Standards of Ethical Conduct**

• Constitution, Article 15, Section 1. All members of the Society are required to comply with the standards of conduct for engineers as set forth in the ISEE Fundamental Principles and Fundamental Canons as a condition of continuing membership in good standing.

**Fundamental Principles**

ISEE Members uphold and advance the integrity, honor and dignity of the engineering profession by:

1. using their knowledge and skill for the enhancement of humankind;
2. serving their peers, their employers and their clients with integrity, honesty, and fidelity;
3. striving to increase the standard of excellence and prestige of the explosives industry; and
4. supporting the profession and technical societies of their disciplines.

**Fundamental Canons**

1. ISEE Members shall maintain and promote the safety, and health and welfare of persons and property at all times.
2. ISEE Members shall perform services only in areas in which they are competent.
3. ISEE Members shall issue public statements only in an objective and truthful manner.
4. ISEE Members shall act as faithful agents or trustees for each employer or client in professional matters. They shall avoid conflicts of interest.
5. ISEE Members shall build their professional reputation on merit of their services, and shall not compete unfairly with others.
6. ISEE Members shall, by their conduct, uphold and enhance the honor, integrity and dignity of the explosives industry.
7. ISEE Members shall continue their professional development throughout their career and shall provide opportunities for the professional development of those that they supervise.
8. ISEE members shall accept responsibility for their actions: be open to acknowledge criticism of their work; be sensitive and offer honest criticism of the work of others: properly credit the contributions of other; and shall not accept credit for work that is not theirs.

**F. Appendix**  
**6. Chapter Reports**

**Chapter Reporting Checklist**

A. Every ISEE Chapter should have on file at the ISEE Headquarter the following information:

Database Checklist

1. The chapter charter date.
2. EIN - Employer Identification Number
3. Date of chapter incorporation if incorporated.
4. IRS Exempt Letter is exempt
5. List of bank accounts, checking and savings information
6. Number of ISEE members, Number of chapter members
7. Annual dues and invoice dates
8. Last Annual Report
9. Location of chapter library
10. Election dates & list of current officers and directors

B. For your annual report, please complete the Financial Statement Form and attach the other items listed below:

Annual Report Checklist

1. Financial Statement
2. List of Officers and Directors for the year covered by the report
3. Current membership list (paid in full members for the past year)
4. A copy of the minutes of the regular meetings of the directors and members
5. Schedule of events for the next year
6. Location of Chapter Library and contact person name and number

Reports should be sent before March 31, to:

*Chapter Coordinator*  
*International Society of Explosives Engineers*  
*30325 Bainbridge Road*  
*Cleveland OH 44139-2295*  
Tel (440) 349-4400 Fax (440) 349-3788

**F. Appendix**

**7. Chapter Financial Statement Form  
International Society of Explosives Engineers**

**Chapter Financial Statement Form**  
*Revenue and Expense Statement*

As of December 31, 200\_\_\_\_

**Income** for Year \_\_\_\_\_ Membership Dues      \$ \_\_\_\_\_

Other Income (List by Source)

\_\_\_\_\_

\_\_\_\_\_

*Total Income for the Year*      \$ \_\_\_\_\_

---

**Expenses**

Meeting Room Rental      \$ \_\_\_\_\_

Dinner Expense      \_\_\_\_\_

Printing & Stationery      \_\_\_\_\_

Postage and Mailing      \_\_\_\_\_

Program Expenses      \_\_\_\_\_

Other Expenses      \_\_\_\_\_

*Total Expenses for the Year*      \$ \_\_\_\_\_

---

**Revenue Over Expenses**      \$ \_\_\_\_\_

---

**Balance on Hand**

1. Checkbook Amount      \$ \_\_\_\_\_

Bank \_\_\_\_\_

Account # \_\_\_\_\_

2. Savings Amount      \$ \_\_\_\_\_

Bank \_\_\_\_\_

Account # \_\_\_\_\_

*Total Balances On Hand*      \$ \_\_\_\_\_

---

**Debts Owed by the Chapter**

1. Amount of Indebtedness      \$ \_\_\_\_\_

Owed to \_\_\_\_\_

2. Amount of Indebtedness      \$ \_\_\_\_\_

Owed to \_\_\_\_\_

*Total Chapter Indebtedness*      \$ \_\_\_\_\_

---

**Date** \_\_\_\_\_ **Treasurer's Signature** \_\_\_\_\_

## Appendix

### **8. International Society of Explosives Engineers Chapter Awards Summary**

**I. Chapter Quality Operations Award** Recognizes levels of operational achievement. All Chapters, regardless of size, qualify for the award. The objective is to encourage well-rounded, effective, Chapter operations by providing a self-evaluation program. Recognize all Chapters whose yearly accomplishments indicate a quality of operational performance consistent with Society Objectives, purposes and strategies.

**II. Chapter Service Award-** Chapter Service Award recognizes chapters that conduct programs of service to the community relating to explosives safety, education and public relations.

**III. Chapter Volunteer Appreciation Awards-** Chapter Volunteer Appreciation Award gives recognition to a Chapter Leader and/or staff person for work done on behalf of the chapter.

#### **IV. Chapter Newsletter Award**

*Chapter Newsletter Award* recognizes the best chapter newsletter(s) based on such standards as content and appearance, and consistency. For on going promotion of the explosives industry and chapter activities. Note: Chapter Newsletter Awards may be presented for printed and electronic editions.

**V. Chapter Membership Trophy** This award is being presented for the third time. The award is given to a chapter for increasing chapter ISEE membership by a substantial percentage. This award covers the last reported membership rebate period.

**VI. Chapter Web Site** - This Award will be presented to the best chapter web site based on appearance, functionality and user friendliness.

**International Society of Explosives Engineers**

**Chapter Awards 1993-2006**

**Chapter Quality Operations Awards**

**2006** Black Hills Chapter  
**2005** Black Hills Chapter  
**2004** Tri-State Chapter  
**2004** Black Hills Chapter  
**2003** Black Hills Chapter  
**2002** Northern Plains Chapter  
 Black Hills Chapter  
**2001** New England Chapter  
 Black Hills Chapter  
**2000** Black Hills Chapter  
 New England Chapter  
**1999** Black Hills Chapter  
 New England Chapter  
**1998** New England Chapter  
**1997** New England Chapter  
**1996** Mid- Atlantic Chapter  
**1995** Ozark Chapter  
**1994** Black Hills Chapter  
**1993** Black Hills Chapter

**Chapter Service Awards**

**2006** Eastern PA Chapter  
 Mid- Atlantic Chapter  
 Mississippi Valley Chapter  
 Heartland Chapter  
**2005** *Not Presented*  
**2004** *Not Presented*  
**2003** Heartland Chapter Blasters Training Program  
**2003** Black Hills and  
 Northern Plains Chapter- Scholarship  
 Program  
**2002** *Not Presented*  
**2001** Lake Superior Chapter  
 Pacific Northwest Chapter  
 Black Hills Chapter  
**2000** Mid-Atlantic Chapter  
 Eastern Pennsylvania Chapter  
**1999** *Not Presented*  
**1998** Connecticut Valley Chapter  
**1997** Ontario Trillium Chapter  
**1996** *Not Presented*  
**1995** *Not Presented*  
**1994** *Not Presented*  
**1993** Colorado Chapter  
 Northern Plains

**Black Hills Chapter Quality Program Award**

**1994** Canadian Rockies Chapter  
 Ozark Chapter

**Chapter Volunteer Appreciation Awards**

**2006** Floyd, Black Hills Chapter  
 Teresa Barton, New England Chapter

Patrick Matkozich, Mid-Atlantic Chapter

**2005** Jim Daley, California Southwest Chapter  
 Lisa Lien, Black Hills Chapter  
 Deb Montague, Great Lakes Chapter  
 Paul Sterk, Black Hills Chapter  
 Dave Archer, Northern Plains Chapter  
 Rebecca Geary- Spahr, Eastern PA Chapter  
**2004** Chuck Tomlin, Eastern PA  
 David Baldauf, Mid-Atlantic Chapter  
 Charlie Brumbaugh, Black Hills Chapter  
 Christopher Davis, UMR Student Chapter  
**2002-** Thomas S. Jenkins, Heartland Chapter  
 Jim K. Spanos, Black Hills  
 Dennis D. Kisthart, Eastern PA Chapter  
 Kevin Peterson, Northern Plains  
 Dick Darfler, Northern Plains  
**2002-** Dick Daniel, Pacific Northwest Chapter  
 Rebecca Geary, Eastern PA Chapter  
 Jim Keenan, Lake Superior Chapter  
 Catherine Aimone-Martin, NM Rio Grande  
 Randy May, Eastern Pennsylvania Chapter  
 Paul Kunze, Rocky Mountain Chapter  
 Paul Sterk, Black Hills Chapter  
 Marlyn King, Northern Plains Chapter  
**2001-** Lisa Lien, Black Hills Chapter  
 Jim McKeever, Potomac Chapter  
 Keith Pucalik, Mid- Atlantic Chapter  
 Joe Strobbe, New Mexico Rio Grande Chapter  
 Larry W. Unger, Lake Superior Chapter  
 Joe Wood, Black Hills Chapter  
 Ruth Ziolkowski, Black Hills Chapter  
**2000** Jeff Hermanson, Black Hills Chapter  
 Kevin Hachmeister, Black Hills Chapter  
 Thomas Barkley, Lake Superior Chapter  
 Paul Fluriel, New England Chapter  
**1999-** Rex Shoun, Black Hills Chapter  
 Jon Meade, Black Hills Chapter  
 Robert Jacksina, New England  
 Tom Jenkins, Heartland Chapter  
 Ron Ravizza, Connecticut Valley Chapter  
**1998 -** Mary Jane Lynch- Connecticut Valley Chap  
 Teresa Barton- New England Chapter  
 Mitchell W. Green New England Chapter  
 Robert Cardosi- New England Chapter  
 Donald A. Hall- Eastern PA Chapter  
 Cameron Thomas- Ontario Trillium Chapter  
 Kerry Harnish- Black Hills Chapter  
**1997-** Mary Jane Lynch- Connecticut Valley  
 Rhonda King - Northern Plains  
 Dede Peterson - Northern Plains  
 Vida Martin - Northern Plains  
 Bryan Adams- Colorado Chapter

	Gordon Revey-Colorado Chapter	<b>2001</b>	Colorado Chapter
	Darrel Brown- Colorado Chapter	<b>2000</b>	Eastern Pennsylvania Chapter
	Bill Snyder- Colorado Chapter	<b>1990</b>	Pacific Northwest Chapter
	Paul McAnuff- Ontario Chapter	<b>1998</b>	Rocky Mountain Chapter
	René (Moose) Morin- Ontario Chapter		
	Mitch Green- New England Chapter		
	Bob Cardosi-New England Chapter		
	Rodger Bayer - Mississippi Valley Chapter		
	Jim Pleinis -Black Hills chapter		
	Hubert C. Stubbs - Mid-Atlantic Chapter		
<b>1996-</b>	Robert L. Jeremiah, Pacific Northwest		
	Mitchell Green, New England Chapter		
	Robert Cardosi, New England Chapter		
	Gordon Revey, Colorado Chapter		
	Bonnie Dennis, Black Hills		
	Jay Parker, Colorado Chapter		
	Chuck Sutton, Mid - Atlantic Chapter		
<b>1995-</b>	Doug Hoy, Black Hills Chapter		
	Philip Berger, Jr, Mid-Atlantic Chapter		
<b>1994-</b>	<i>No recipients</i>		
<b>1993-</b>	Dennis Kisthart, Potomac Chapter		
	Dick Love, Golden West Chapter		
	Gordon Coleman, Golden West Chapter		
	Wes Bender Golden West Chapter.		
	Mary Jo Barrett, Tri-State Chapter		
	Mary Jane Lynch, Connecticut Valley		

#### **Chapter Newsletter Awards**

<b>2006</b>	Golden West Chapter ( <i>In Print</i> “Primer”)
	California Southwest Chapter - <i>Electronic</i>
<b>2005</b>	Black Hills Chapter- Fire in the Hole/Email
<b>2005</b>	California Southwest E-mail/Color
<b>2005</b>	Potomac Chapter/Hard Copy
<b>2004</b>	Great Lakes Chapter Newsletter <i>Blaster’s Ink</i>
<b>2004</b>	Golden West Chapter- <i>The Primer</i>
<b>2003</b>	Northern Plains Chapter - <i>Blasters Report</i>
<b>2002</b>	Eastern Pennsylvania Chapter- Leadlines
<b>2001</b>	Potomac Chapter - <i>Bang</i>
<b>2000</b>	Potomac Chapter – <i>Bang</i>
<b>1999</b>	Potomac Chapter – <i>Bang</i>
	Ontario Chapter - The Blasted Journal
<b>1998</b>	Potomac Chapter – <i>Bang</i>
	Ontario Chapter - The Blasted Journal
<b>1997</b>	Connecticut Valley Chapter Newsletter
<b>1996</b>	Potomac Chapter - <i>Bang</i>
<b>1995</b>	<i>Silver State Chapter Newsletter</i>
<b>1994</b>	<i>Rocky Mountain Chapter Newsletter</i>
<b>1993</b>	Golden West Chapter - <i>Primer</i>

#### **Website Award**

<b>2006</b>	New England Chapter
-------------	---------------------

#### **Chapter Membership Trophy**

<b>2006</b>	Carolinas Chapter
<b>2005</b>	New England
<b>2004</b>	Tri-State Chapter
<b>2003</b>	Mississippi Valley Chapter
<b>2002</b>	Tri-State Chapter